
WTRY Broadcast Schedule Regular Meetings, Wednesday, 6:15 p.m. and 11:00 p.m. Study Meetings, Wednesday, 3:15 p.m. 

 PLANNING COMMISSION 

 MEETING AGENDA 

REGULAR MEETING 

 
 

Michael W. Hutson, Chair, and Mark Maxwell, Vice Chair 
Donald Edmunds, Philip Sanzica, Robert Schultz, Thomas Strat 

John J. Tagle, Lon M. Ullmann and Mark J. Vleck 

   

August 10, 2010 7:30 P.M. Council Chamber 
   

 
1. ROLL CALL 
 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES July 13, 2010 Regular Meeting 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – For Items Not on the Agenda 
 
 

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEWS 
 
5. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 862 A) – Proposed Weston Downs, 

Southeast Corner of Wattles and Finch Road, Section 21, Currently Zoned R-1T (One Family 
Attached Residential) District 

 
6. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 068 A) – Proposed Bethany Villa 

Housing Association Community Building, West of John R Road and South of E. Big Beaver, 
Section 26, Currently Zoned RM-1 (Multiple Family Residential) District 

 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUEST 
 
7. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE APPROVAL AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 

(File Number SU 382) – Proposed The Barkshire, North of Maple, West of Crooks (1501 
Temple City Drive), Section 29, Currently Zoned M-1 (Light Industrial) District 

 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 
8. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
9. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
 
ADJOURN 
 
NOTICE: People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-mail at 

clerk@troymi.gov or by calling (248) 524-3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make 
reasonable accommodations. 

500 W. Big Beaver 
Troy, MI  48084 
(248) 524-3364 
www.troymi.gov 

planning@troymi.gov 

mailto:clerk@ci.troy.mi.us


PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JULY 13, 2010 
  

 
 

1 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Hutson at 7:30 p.m. on July 13, 2010, in the Council Chamber of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Donald Edmunds 
Michael W. Hutson 
Mark Maxwell 
Philip Sanzica 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Lon M. Ullmann 
Mark J. Vleck (arrived 7:40 p.m.) 
 

Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Zachary Branigan, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Wanda Norman, Planning Department Intern 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2010-07-045 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 

RESOLVED, To approve the Revised Agenda, as prepared. 
 
Resolution # PC-2010-07-046 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Ullmann 
 

RESOLVED, To amend the motion on the floor to add to the agenda discussion on 
the Transit Center as Agenda item #8-B. 
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Chair Hutson stated that discussion on the transit center might be more appropriate 
at the joint meeting with Birmingham on July 14th when representation from all 
professions is present and available to address questions and concerns. 
 
Mr. Ullmann expressed a desire to discuss some points tonight prior to the joint 
meeting. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JULY 13, 2010 
  

 
 

2 
 

Vote on the amendment to the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: Edmunds, Maxwell, Sanzica, Strat, Tagle, Ullmann 
No: Hutson, Schultz 
Absent: Vleck (arrived 7:40 p.m.) 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution # PC-2010-07-045, as amended. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Vleck (arrived 7:40 p.m.) 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
3. MINUTES 

 
Resolution # PC-2010-07-046 
Moved by: Sanzica 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 

RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the June 22, 2010 Special/Study meeting 
as prepared. 
 

Yes: Edmunds, Hutson, Maxwell, Sanzica, Schultz, Strat, Ullmann 
Abstain: Tagle 
Absent: Vleck (arrived 7:40 p.m.) 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEWS 
 

5. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 899 A) – Proposed 
Automation Alley Addition, West side of Bellingham, South of Big Beaver (2675 
Bellingham), Section 26, Currently Zoned R-C (Research Center) District 
 
Mr. Branigan presented a summary of the Planning Consultant report on the 
proposed Preliminary Site Plan application.  Mr. Branigan addressed the 42 parking 
spaces proposed for future use and the 22 spaces along the south boundary that 
encroach into the neighboring site.  Mr. Branigan said the existing 76 parking 
spaces provide more than enough parking to accommodate the existing use and 
expanded use.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JULY 13, 2010 
  

 
 

3 
 

Mr. Branigan expressed support of the request and recommends the Planning 
Commission approve the Preliminary Site Plan application with the condition to 
eliminate the proposed parking spaces along the south boundary. 
 
[Mr. Vleck arrived at 7:40 p.m.] 
 
The petitioner, Randall DeRuiter of Synergy Group, 39400 Woodward Avenue, 
Bloomfield Hills, was present.   
 
Ken Rogers, Executive Director of Automation Alley, was also present.   
 
Mr. DeRuiter requested consideration to approve the parking to the south, 
conditioned upon securing a cross access easement in the future.   
 
Mr. Savidant said it is required to designate a cross access easement on the site 
plan at the time of site plan approval.   
 
Mr. Branigan explained that should approval of the site plan be conditioned on 
securing a cross access easement in the future, and the easement was not 
secured, then the site plan would be rendered invalid because the condition of the 
site plan was not met. 
 
Mr. Savidant gave a brief explanation of the administrative process of Preliminary 
Site Plan approval. 
 
Resolution # PC-2010-07-047 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Strat 
 

RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the proposed Automation 
Alley addition, located on the west side Bellingham, south of Big Beaver Road (2675 
Bellingham), Section 26, within the R-C zoning district, be granted, subject to the 
following condition: 
 

1. Submittal of a revised site plan indicating the elimination of the denoted future 
parking along the south boundary of the property. 

 

Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JULY 13, 2010 
  

 
 

4 
 

6. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 949 A) – Proposed Troy 
Marketplace Parking Reduction, Southwest Corner of Big Beaver and Rochester 
Roads, Section 27, Currently Zoned B-2 (Community Business) District 
 
Mr. Branigan presented a summary of the Planning Consultant report on the 
proposed Preliminary Site Plan application.  He addressed the parking and parking 
calculations for restaurants.  Mr. Branigan expressed support of the request and 
recommends the Planning Commission approve the parking modification, permitting 
the site to go from a 201-space deficiency to a 218-space deficiency. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked (1) if there were any registered complaints on parking at the site, 
and (2) how many parking spaces are allotted for the health club. 
 
Mr. Branigan said he is not aware of any complaints relating to parking.  He 
indicated his personal observation is that the site has plenty of parking as well as 
easily accessible parking.  Mr. Branigan indicated the health club has plenty of 
parking also because the major retail space next to them is vacant.  He replied that 
based on the report provided, the estimated peak demand for parking at the health 
club on a weekend, including employees, could be as high as 527. 
 
Mike Sullivan of Ramco-Gershenson, 31500 Northwestern Highway, Farmington 
Hills, was present to represent the petitioner. 
 
Resolution # PC-2010-07-048 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 

RESOLVED, The Planning Commission hereby approves a reduction in the number 
of required parking spaces for the proposed Troy Marketplace uses to 1,438 when 
a total of 1,656 spaces are required on the site based on off-street parking space 
requirements, as per Article XL.  This 218-space reduction is justified through the 
application of ULI parking methodology, as outlined in the Technical Memorandum 
prepared by PEA. 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the 
proposed uses, located on the southwest corner of Big Beaver and Rochester Road, 
Section 27, within the B-2 zoning district, be granted. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JULY 13, 2010 
  

 
 

5 
 

7. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 963) – Proposed North Troy 
Park Association, Southwest Corner of South Boulevard and Rochester Road, 
Section 3, Currently Zoned O-1 (Office Building) District 
 
Mr. Branigan presented a summary of the Planning Consultant report on the 
proposed Preliminary Site Plan application.  He addressed the parking and parking 
calculations.  Mr. Branigan expressed support of the request and recommends the 
Planning Commission approve the parking modification, conditioned on the 
restriction that the usable square footage for 6915 Rochester and 89 South 
Boulevard be limited to 65% of the gross square footage.  
 
Ron Radcliffe of Trivest Management Services, Rochester, was present to 
represent the petitioner.  He indicated that co-owners of the property were present 
also. 
 
Resolution # PC-2010-07-049 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Strat 
 

RESOLVED, The Planning Commission hereby approves a reduction in the number 
of required parking spaces for the proposed medical office uses to 143 when a total 
of 193 spaces are required on the site based on off-street parking space 
requirements, as per Article XL.  This 50-space reduction is justified through the 
application of ULI and ITE methodologies, as outlined in the Parking Space Analysis 
prepared by Nowak & Fraus. 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the 
proposed medical office uses, located on the southwest corner of South Boulevard 
and Rochester Road, Section 3, within the O-1 zoning district, be granted, subject to 
the following condition: 
 
1. That the usable square footage be limited to 65% for the final build out of 89 

South Boulevard and 6915 Rochester Road. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JULY 13, 2010 
  

 
 

6 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUEST 
 

8. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE APPROVAL AND PRELIMINARY SITE 
PLAN REVIEW (File Number SU 381) – Proposed Renaissance Fencing Club, 
North of Maple, West of Livernois (408 Oliver), Section 28, Currently Zoned M-1 
(Light Industrial) District 
 
Mr. Branigan presented a summary of the Planning Consultant report on the 
proposed Special Use and Preliminary Site Plan application.  He addressed the 
proposed re-occupancy of the vacant industrial building with respect to site 
improvements, occupancy, special use request and parking, inclusive of a shared 
parking agreement with the adjacent landowner.  Mr. Branigan indicated a 
landscape plan is not required, but brought to the attention of the members that 
there are no street trees on site.  He recommends that as a Special Use, the 
Planning Commission require the applicant to provide three street trees as a 
condition to site plan approval. 
 
Mr. Branigan expressed support of the Special Use and Preliminary Site Plan 
application and recommends the Planning Commission approve the application with 
conditions that the single class size is limited to 35 students, that tournaments are 
held only on weekends, and that three street trees are provided along Oliver Street. 
 
Mr. Schultz noted that it might be to the property owner’s advantage to seek and 
receive the required variances for the legal nonconformities. 
 
It was calculated that the class size could be increased to 45 students to correlate 
to the number of parking spaces provided. 
 
Mr. Edmunds addressed the shared access road on site and the sign displayed for 
overflow parking. 
 
Mr. Savidant said City staff would look into the matter to assure that the sign meets 
City sign ordinance requirements. 
 
Mr. Savidant announced the Planning Department received a letter from H & S 
Inspection Service of 422 Oliver Drive, a copy of which was distributed to members 
prior to the beginning of tonight’s meeting.  The letter, supportive of the Special Use 
request, addresses concerns with the operation of the club. 
 
Mary Bednar, civil engineer, fencer and coach at Renaissance Fencing Club, was 
present to represent the petitioner.   
 
Robert Snyder of 408 Oliver, Troy, was also present. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JULY 13, 2010 
  

 
 

7 
 

Ms. Bednar addressed the shared parking agreement for overflow parking and class 
size.  She expressed concern with the placement and survival of three street trees, 
noting the planting area is limited in size.  Mr. Bednar also indicated that a sign 
permit application for the overflow parking sign is in process. 
 
The placement of the three streets trees was briefly discussed.  It was noted there 
is no requirement to plant the trees in a straight line; they could be staggered.  The 
Planning Department will assist the petitioner with the placement of the street trees. 
 
Mr. Snyder said he is not opposed to planting the trees.  He just wanted to plant 
them in the appropriate manner.  Mr. Snyder briefly addressed the hardships 
property owners are facing in the current economy.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2010-07-050 
Moved by: Sanzica 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 

RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as 
requested for the proposed indoor commercial recreation use, located north of 
Maple, west of Livernois (408 Oliver), in Section 28, within the M-1 zoning district, 
be granted, subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. No more than 45 students shall be permitted in a single class. 
2. Tournaments shall be held only on weekends. 
3. Three (3) street trees shall be provided along Oliver Street. 
 

Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

8. A REMOVAL OF CONDITION OF PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number 
SP 960) – Proposed Vehma International Improvements, Northwest corner of 
Stephenson and Rankin (1055 Stephenson), Section 35, Currently Zoned M-1 
(Light Industrial) District 
 
Chair Hutson addressed the item to reconsider the condition placed on Preliminary 
Site Plan approval for Vehma International Improvements at 1055 Stephenson 
Highway.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JULY 13, 2010 
  

 
 

8 
 

Mr. Strat said he supports the reconsideration of the condition placed on Preliminary 
Site Plan approval for Vehma.  It was his assumption when the item was before the 
Board for approval that the petitioner was in agreement to the condition.  
 
Chair Hutson noted the initial Preliminary Site Plan met all requirements of the 
Zoning Ordinance and the parent company did not agree with the condition placed 
on the approval.  Chair Hutson said it would be a disservice to the City to lose a big 
development to another community because of a condition to place a berm. 
 
Mr. Schultz said he supports the Resolution in front of the Board tonight.  He said 
the paperwork in front of the Board this evening makes it look like the Planning 
Commission did something nefarious, noting that is not the case.  He asked that the 
record reflect that the petitioner agreed to the berm at the request of the Planning 
Commission, and it was not demanded of them. 
 
Resolution # PC-2010-07-051 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Planning Commission performs an essential function for the 
economic vitality of the City of Troy through its review and approval of preliminary 
site plans for significant new projects and in-fill projects; and  
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Planning Commission, after being presented with a 
preliminary site plan application from Vehma, granted preliminary site plan approval 
for a project located at 1055 Stephenson Highway, which is reported to generate 
365 new jobs in the City of Troy and significant tax revenue; and  
 
WHEREAS, This preliminary site plan approval, approved on June 22, 2010, was 
conditioned on the construction of a berm adjacent to Stephenson Highway, which 
although not required by Troy’s ordinance, was proposed to screen vehicles from 
the roadway; and  
 
WHEREAS, The developer has requested removal of this condition of the 
preliminary site plan approval, and has indicated that the imposition of this condition 
may subsequently impede this significant economic development project.    
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby 
REMOVES the requirement for the construction of a berm along Stephenson 
Highway, which was a condition of the Preliminary Site Plan Approval granted on 
June 22, 21010 for the proposed Vehma International Improvements.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JULY 13, 2010 
  

 
 

9 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby RATIFIES 
the Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the proposed Vehma International 
Improvements, located at 1055 Stephenson Highway, on the Northwest corner of 
Stephenson and Rankin in Section 35, which is within the M-1 zoning district, 
pursuant to Section 03.30.03 of the Zoning Ordinance.   
 

Yes: All present (9) 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
8. B TROY/BIRMINGHAM TRANSIT CENTER 

 
Mr. Edmunds said his major concern with the Transit Center Preliminary Site Plan is 
the lack of elevators, although he commended the staff to show the elevators as an 
alternate plan.  Mr. Edmunds addressed the site plan in relation to the bid process 
and grant funding, and offered the following Resolution for consideration. 
 
Resolution # PC-2010-07- 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by:  
 

RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission approves the Preliminary Site Plan 
review of the Intermodal Transit Center, subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. The plan incorporates two elevators to improve accessibility, as a required and 
not an alternate bid package component. 

2. Staff has requested to revise the site plan components so as to not exceed the 
grant funding approved for the project. 

 
There was discussion on the following. 
 

 Elevators; not as alternate plan. 

 Project costs/expenditures. 

 Federal grant funding. 

 Safety concerns. 

 Zoning Ordinance requirements met. 

 Identify concerns, specifically lack of elevators, to City Council. 
 
Mr. Savidant reminded the Planning Commission that its role in the Preliminary Site 
Plan approval process is to make a recommendation to City Council.  He indicated 
that expenditures for the project is a policy decision by City Council.  Mr. Savidant 
explained the Preliminary Site Plan approval process as a joint venture. 
 
There was no support for the motion on the floor.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JULY 13, 2010 
  

 
 

10 
 

 
OTHER BUSINESS 

 
9. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 

10. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
Mr. Strat welcomed Allan Motzny. 
 
Mr. Schultz acknowledged the sadness of the tragic death of Saif Jameel and 
extended sincere condolences to the family. 
 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 9:06 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Michael W. Hutson, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2010 PC Minutes\Draft\07-13-10 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 

 



  PC 2010.08.10 
  Agenda Item # 5 
 

DATE: August 4, 2010 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 862 A) – Proposed 

Weston Downs, Southeast Corner of Wattles and Finch Road, Section 21, 
Currently Zoned R-1T (One Family Attached Residential) District 

 
 
The applicant, Mondrian Properties Weston Downs, LLC, submitted the above referenced 
Preliminary Site Plan Approval application.  The applicant is proposing to modify the site 
plan originally approved by the Planning Commission on April 10, 2001, although revised 
since initially approved.  The existing approved site layout includes 24 units, with all units 
within attached condominiums.  Sixteen of the units have been constructed.  The applicant 
now proposes to detach the remaining 8 units.   
  
The required distance between buildings is 20 feet.  The applicant proposes some units 
with less than the 20 foot requirement.  Therefore, the applicant requires setback 
variances from the Board of Zoning Appeals.  For this reason, no action is necessary prior 
to the BZA meeting. 
 
The attached report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. summarizes the 
project.   
 
Please be prepared to discuss the application at the August 10, 2010 Planning 
Commission Regular meeting. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps 
2. Report prepared by CWA 

 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File/ SP 862-A 
 

 
G:\SITE PLANS\SP 862-A  Weston Downs Site Condominium  Sec 21\SP-862A Weston Downs 08 10 10.docx 



Weston Downs Site Condominium

7/14/2010

Legend

1: 2,906

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

2420484 484Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

I-75

Road Centerline

Major Road

Industrial Road

Local Road

Hydrography Poly

Hydrography Arc

Parcels

Aerial Photos - 2008

Red:    Band_1

Green: Band_2

Blue:   Band_3



Weston Downs Site Condominium

7/14/2010

Legend

1: 2,906

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

2420484 484Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

I-75

Road Centerline

Major Road

Industrial Road

Local Road

Zoning

(PUD) Planned Unit Development

(B-1) Local Business District

(B-2) Community Business District

(B-3) General Business District

(R-C) Research Center District

(C-F) Community Facilities District

(C-J) Consent Judgment

(E-P) Environmental Protection District

(R-EC) Residential Elder Care

(P-1) Vehicular Parking District

(H-S) Highway Service District

(M-1) Light Industrial District

(O-1) Office Building District

(O-M) Office Mid-Rise District

(OSC) Office Service Commercial District

(CR-1) One Family Residential Cluster District

(R-1A) One Family Residential District

(R-1B) One Family Residential District

(R-1C) One Family Residential District

(R-1D) One Family Residential District

(R-1E) One Family Residential District

(R-1T) One Family Attached Residential District

(R-2) Two Family Residential District

(R-M) Multiple Family Residential Medium Density

(RM-1) Multiple Family Residential District (Low Rise)

(RM-2) Multiple Family Residential District (Mid Rise)

(RM-3) Multiple Family Residential District (High Rise)

Hydrography Poly

Hydrography Arc

Parcels

Aerial Photos - 2008

Red:    Band_1

Green: Band_2

Blue:   Band_3



 

Richard K. Carlisle, President      R. Donald Wortman, Vice President       Douglas J. Lewan, Principal      John L. Enos, Principal 

Jennifer L. Coe, Associate    Sally M. Elmiger, Associate    David J. Scurto, Associate    Brian M. Oppmann, Associate    Zachary Branigan, Associate 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

TO: Brent Savidant 

 

FROM: Zachary Branigan 

DATE: August 5, 2010 

 

RE: Weston Downs 

 

 

We are in receipt of a site plan for the proposed changes to an approved condominium project, 

Weston Downs. The applicant intends to alter the approved plans to omit a series of attached 

single family buildings and replace them with 8 single family residential homes.  The site is 

currently partially developed.  There are 6 buildings already constructed, along with all common 

areas, the roadway, and landscaping improvements throughout the project.  The landscaping is 

maintained well and the existing buildings are of a very high construction standard.  

 

We have reviewed this submittal preliminarily for general compliance with ordinance 

requirements and have determined that the project will require a variance to proceed. The site 

plan provided is limited in detail, perhaps in anticipation of the need for a variance.  

Consequently, it does not fully comply with the requirements for preliminary site plan submittal 

at this time; however, sufficient detail is provided to determine what action would be required 

from the Planning Commission and Board of Zoning Appeals to proceed. 

 

Article 30, Schedule of Regulations, established minimum dimensions for projects in the R-1T 

district.  Section 31.30.00.L provides specific guidance for R-IT projects.  It states: 

 

In an R-1T or R-M District, front, side, or rear yards need not refer to spacing between buildings 

for a planned development of two (2) or more buildings on the same parcel. In such cases the 

minimum distance between any two (2) buildings shall be regulated according to the formula 

contained in Section 31.30.00 (C). This distance shall be no less than forty (40) feet, except as 

modified by the following provisions relative to the R-1T District: 

 

The Planning Commission may modify the minimum distance between buildings in R-1T Districts 

in the following manner, when such is not controlled by the formula contained in Sub-section (C) 

above: 

 

1. The minimum distance between buildings containing no more than two (2) units and having a 

total length (extending from the subject yard) of no more than sixty (60) feet, may be twenty (20) 

feet. 

 



Weston Downs 

August 5, 2010 

 2 

2. The minimum distance between buildings containing no more than four (4) units and having a 

total length (extending from the subject yard) of no more than one hundred-twenty (120) feet, 

may be thirty (30) feet. 

 

3. The Planning Commission shall determine the appropriate minimum distance between 

buildings, within the range provided above, when the subject buildings involve combinations of 

unit counts and/or building lengths. 

 

Given that the applicant’s proposal includes single dwelling buildings, the project would now 

have structures “containing no more than two units” as regulated above.  The Planning 

Commission, when projects contain buildings with combinations of unit counts, is required to 

determine the appropriate setbacks between buildings.  However, under no circumstance, could 

the setback between buildings be less than 20 feet between two buildings with “no more than two 

units” as noted above. 

 

The applicant proposed a setback of as little as 10 feet in one circumstance, and other distances 

that are less than 20 feet, in several others.  Therefore, in order to proceed, the applicant would 

need to obtain a variance.   

 

Should the variance be secured, we believe the other setbacks, which require Planning 

Commission approval, provided between the existing buildings on the site and the new single 

family buildings is sufficient, 30 feet between units 5 and 6, and 40 feet between units 19 and 20.  

We believe the Planning Commission should find these setbacks acceptable, in accordance with 

item 3, above.   

 

Section 43.86.00, which was enacted in October of 2009, states that when a variance is required 

for a project which also requires site plan approval, that project must first come before the 

Planning Commission.  It states: 

 

If an application to the Board of Zoning Appeals requires site plan approval by the Planning 

Commission pursuant to the provisions of Section 03.40.03, the applicant shall first apply for site 

plan approval as set forth in Article 03.41.00. The Planning Commission shall review the site 

plan including site layout and other design features, but shall not grant Preliminary Site Plan 

Approval nor make a recommendation on the variance. The Planning Commission shall then 

transmit the site plan and the minutes related to said site plan to the Board of Zoning Appeals. 

The Board of Zoning Appeals shall transmit its decision related to the application to the 

Planning Commission. The Planning Commission shall then take action on the site plan. 

 

Consequently, the Planning Commission cannot make a determination on this project at this 

time.  The Planning Commission may make preliminary comments and have an initial discussion 

with regard to general project principles. 

 

This project cannot move forward as designed without relief from the Ordinance.  Therefore, we 

recommend that the Planning Commission postpone action on the applicant’s request until such 

time as they can apply for and potentially obtain a variance from the Board of Zoning Appeals. 

 



Weston Downs 

August 5, 2010 

 3 

Sincerely,  

 
 
 





  PC 2010.08.10 
  Agenda Item # 6 
 

DATE: August 5, 2010 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 068 A) – Proposed 

Bethany Villa Housing Association, West of John R Road and South of E. Big 
Beaver (1680 Jackson), Section 26, Currently Zoned RM-1 (Multiple Family 
Residential) District 

 
 
The applicant, Wolverine North America, submitted the above referenced Preliminary Site 
Plan Approval application.  They propose 7,410 square foot clubhouse for the existing 
retirement community.  Bethany Villas was originally approved by the Planning 
Commission on March 12, 1968. 
 
The attached report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. summarizes the 
project. 
 
Please be prepared to discuss the application at the August 10, 2010 Planning 
Commission Regular meeting. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps. 
2. Report prepared by CWA. 

 
 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File/ SP 068 A 
 

 
G:\SITE PLANS\SP 068-A  Bethany Villa Community Building  Sec 26\SP-068 A Bethany Villa PC Report 08 10 10.docx 



PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEWS 
 
6. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 068 A) – Proposed 

Bethany Villa Housing Association Community Building, West of John R Road 
and South of E. Big Beaver, Section 26, Currently Zoned RM-1 (Multiple Family 
Residential) District 

 
Resolution # PC-2010-08- 
Moved by:  
Seconded by:  
 

RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the proposed Bethany 
Villa Housing Association community building, located West of John R Road 
and South of E. Big Beaver, Section 26, within the RM-1 zoning district, be 
(granted, subject to the following conditions): 
___________________________________________________________) or  
 

(denied, for the following reasons: _________________________________) or 
 

(postponed, for the following reasons:_________________________________) 
 

Yes:  
No:  
Absent:  
 
MOTION CARRIED / DENIED 
 
 
 
G:\SITE PLANS\SP 068-A  Bethany Villa Community Building  Sec 26\Proposed Resolution 08 10 10.docx 



Bethany Villa Housing Association Inc.

7/14/2010

Legend

1: 3,812

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

3180635 635Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

I-75

Road Centerline

Major Road

Industrial Road

Local Road

Hydrography Poly

Hydrography Arc

Parcels

Aerial Photos - 2008

Red:    Band_1

Green: Band_2

Blue:   Band_3



Bethany Villa Housing Association Inc.

7/14/2010

Legend

1: 3,812

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

3180635 635Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

I-75

Road Centerline

Major Road

Industrial Road

Local Road

Zoning

(PUD) Planned Unit Development

(B-1) Local Business District

(B-2) Community Business District

(B-3) General Business District

(R-C) Research Center District

(C-F) Community Facilities District

(C-J) Consent Judgment

(E-P) Environmental Protection District

(R-EC) Residential Elder Care

(P-1) Vehicular Parking District

(H-S) Highway Service District

(M-1) Light Industrial District

(O-1) Office Building District

(O-M) Office Mid-Rise District

(OSC) Office Service Commercial District

(CR-1) One Family Residential Cluster District

(R-1A) One Family Residential District

(R-1B) One Family Residential District

(R-1C) One Family Residential District

(R-1D) One Family Residential District

(R-1E) One Family Residential District

(R-1T) One Family Attached Residential District

(R-2) Two Family Residential District

(R-M) Multiple Family Residential Medium Density

(RM-1) Multiple Family Residential District (Low Rise)

(RM-2) Multiple Family Residential District (Mid Rise)

(RM-3) Multiple Family Residential District (High Rise)

Hydrography Poly

Hydrography Arc

Parcels

Aerial Photos - 2008

Red:    Band_1

Green: Band_2

Blue:   Band_3



 
 

 

 Date:  August 5, 2010 

 

 

Preliminary Site Plan Review 

For 

City of Troy, Michigan 

 

 

 
Applicant: Michael Houseman, on behalf of Bethany Villa Housing 

Association, Inc. 

 

Project Name: Bethany Villa Housing Association Community Center 

 

Plan Date: June 2, 2010 

 

Location: 1680 Jackson   

 

Zoning: RM-1, Multiple Family Residential Low Rise 

 

Action Requested: Preliminary Site Plan Approval 

 

Required Information: Deficiencies noted 

 

PROJECT AND SITE DESCRIPTION 

 
We are in receipt of a submittal including a site plan, a topographic survey, a preliminary grading 

plan, a landscape plan, floor plans, elevations, and site details.  The applicant intends to build a 

community center building which would be 7,410 square feet in size.  The building would have a 

garage, two meeting rooms, a computer lab, a kitchen, a library, a conference room, reception, 

maintenance and office areas, a beauty shop, and restrooms. 

 

Location of Subject Property: 

The property is located on the west side of John R. Road, south of Big Beaver Road, in the 

current open central area of an existing multiple-family retirement community. 

 

Size of Subject Property: 

The parcel is 20.19 acres in size. 

 



Bethany Villa 8-5-10 

 

2 

Current/Proposed Use of Subject Parcel: 

The site is currently home to a multiple family residential retirement community.  This specific 

building location would be in an area that is currently an open space. 

 

Current Zoning: 

The property is currently zoned RM-1, Multiple Family Residential Low Rise.  

 

Zoning Classification of Adjacent Parcels: 

North: M-1, Light Industrial District 

South: M-1, Light Industrial District 

East: R-1E (Across John R. Road) 

West: M-1, Light Industrial District. 
 

AREA, WIDTH, HEIGHT, SETBACKS 
 

Required and Provided Dimensions: 

Section 30.10.11 requires the following setbacks and height limits for RM-1 properties.  The 

project currently complies with all required dimensions.  For the purpose of this review, we will 

look only at the proposed building. 

 

* Setbacks between buildings in an RM-1 District are controlled by a formula using the length of two adjacent 

buildings and their proposed height.  Although we do not have the existing height of the building or the adjacent 

buildings we are confident that the proposed building’s location greatly exceeds the minimum setback between 

buildings permitted in an RM-1 District.   

 

Items to be Addressed: 1.) Provide all building heights, existing and proposed. 2.) Provide all 

setback calculations using the formula established by Section 31.30.00.C. 

 

PARKING, LOADING 
 

Proposed Parking: 

The site plan indicates that the project would include 61 new parking spaces.  The existing 

residential units have their own dedicated parking.  The site is immediately adjacent a large 

existing church with its own parking lot. 

 

 Required: Provided: 

Setbacks   

North 30 feet* 81.63 feet 

South 30 feet* 104.19 feet 

East 30 feet*  

West 30 feet*  

Building Height (addition) 25 feet, 2 stories Not provided 



Bethany Villa 8-5-10 

 

3 

Parking Calculations: 

The parking calculations provided by the applicant are as follows. 

 

 
 Required 

Required for fraternal 

halls, social clubs, lodge 

buildings 

1 space for every 3 persons of capacity, 150 total planned capacity, 50 required 

spaces 

Total Provided 61 spaces, 1 barrier free 

 

 

The site plan exceeds required parking by 11 spaces.  It is our understanding that the applicant is 

exploring the possibility of reducing the proposed parking further to save open space.  While the 

project can clearly lose 11 spaces and remain compliant with the Ordinance, we would support a 

parking modification and a further reduction in proposed spaces, given that the majority of users 

for this site will walk to the building from their unit. Unlike other halls or lodges, this one is 

located within the community it is designed to serve, and is not located remotely, nor is it 

designed to serve a population spread throughout the community.  In fact, we suggest that 

applicant pursue a shared parking agreement with the adjacent church, with which the Bethany 

Villa project is associated, and eliminate proposed parking altogether. 

 

Items to be Addressed:  Explore possible reduction or elimination of the proposed surface lot to 

reduce impervious surface.  

 

 

SITE ACCESS AND CIRCULATION 
 

Proposed Circulation: 

 

The site would be accessed primarily on foot by the residents of the Bethany Villa community.  

This building is primarily for their use, although events may be held there.  The building, as 

designed, if accessed via automobile, would be served by the existing circulation lane along the 

south boundary of the adjacent church’s parking area.  This roadway is not an actual road; 

however, the Bethany Villa project and the church share common interests. The roadway is 

actually on the subject site’s property and provides adequate access to the site. 

 

Items to be Addressed: None. 

 

NATURAL RESOURCES 
 

The proposed parking area and building would require the removal of about 15 existing trees.  

Other than the trees, this open area is within an existing, multiple family development, which is 

essentially devoid of valuable natural features (with the exception of existing landscaping and 

trees). 

 

Items to be Addressed: None. 



Bethany Villa 8-5-10 

 

4 

 

LANDSCAPING 
 

A landscape plan has been provided with this submittal; however no landscaping is specifically 

required for project as it has no actual frontage on a public road.  The area surrounding the 

building is sufficiently landscaped, with a combination of crabapples, locusts, ginkos, pears, and 

lindens.  Also, the landscaping plan makes use of a variety of shrubs including junipers, day 

lilies, lilacs, roses, and others. 

 

Items to be addressed: None. 

 

LIGHTING 

 

The applicant has not provided a photometric plan or any lighting details for this project.  Full 

lighting details will be provided for final site plan approval.   

 

Items to be Addressed: None. 

 

SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS 
 

Section 3.43.01 establishes the requirements for preliminary site plan approval.  The minimum 

standards necessary for review have been met. 

 

Items to be Addressed: None. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

The project complies with all dimensional requirements, does not increase parking requirements 

beyond what is available or possible on the subject site, and will have no significant impact on 

natural features.  It has been reviewed by all City departments and no objections have been 

raised.  We support the improvement of this property and recommend the Planning Commission 

approve the preliminary site plan. If offered by the applicant, we support the condition that 

parking be reduced to no more than that required by Ordinance, or that a waiver be granted and 

that it be removed entirely if a shared parking agreement can be obtained with the adjacent 

church. 

 

 

 
 

 





















  PC 2010.08.10 
  Agenda Item # 7 

 

 
 
 
 
DATE: August 5, 2010 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE APPROVAL AND PRELIMINARY SITE 

PLAN REVIEW (File Number SU 382) – Proposed The Barkshire, North of 
Maple, West of Crooks (1501 Temple City Drive), Section 29, Currently Zoned 
M-1 (Light Industrial) District 

 
The applicant, Victor Saroki & Associates Architects PC, proposes to renovate a vacant 
industrial building into a dog kennel and grooming facility.  Dog kennels are permitted subject 
to Special Use Approval, therefore a public hearing is required.  
 
The attached report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. summarizes the project.   
 
Please be prepared to discuss the application at the August 10, 2010 Planning Commission 
Regular meeting. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps. 
2. Report prepared by CWA. 
3. Parking Analysis, prepared by PEA. 
4. Public comment. 

 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File/ SU 382 
 
G:\SPECIAL USE\SU 382 The Barkshire  Sec 29\SU-382 PC Report 08 10 2010.docx 



SPECIAL USE REQUEST 
 
7. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE APPROVAL AND PRELIMINARY SITE 

PLAN REVIEW (File Number SU 382) – Proposed The Barkshire, North of 
Maple, West of Crooks (1501 Temple City Drive), Section 29, Currently Zoned M-
1 (Light Industrial) District 
 
Resolution # PC-2010-08- 
Moved by:  
Seconded by:  
 

RESOLVED, The Planning Commission hereby approves a reduction in the 
number of required parking spaces for the proposed commercial kennel to 15 
when a total of 25 spaces are required on the site based on off-street parking 
space requirements, as per Article XL.  This 10-space reduction is justified 
through a comparison of parking spaces provided for similar uses in the area, 
as outlined in the Parking Analysis prepared by PEA.  Furthermore, this 
reduction will allow for additional pervious surface throughout the site. 
 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the 
proposed The Barkshire commercial kennel, located north of Maple, west of 
Crooks on 1501 Temple City Drive, Section 29, within the M-1 zoning district, be 
(granted, subject to the following conditions): 
___________________________________________________________) or  
 

(denied, for the following reasons: _________________________________) or 
 

(postponed, for the following reasons:_________________________________) 
 

Yes:  
No:  
Absent:  
 
MOTION CARRIED / DENIED 
 
 
 
G:\SPECIAL USE\SU 382 The Barkshire  Sec 29\Proposed Resolution 08 10 10.docx 



The Barkshire

7/14/2010

Legend

1: 2,038

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

1700340 340Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

I-75

Road Centerline

Major Road

Industrial Road

Local Road

Hydrography Poly

Hydrography Arc

Parcels

Aerial Photos - 2008

Red:    Band_1

Green: Band_2

Blue:   Band_3



The Barkshire

7/14/2010

Legend

1: 2,038

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

1700340 340Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

I-75

Road Centerline

Major Road

Industrial Road

Local Road

Zoning

(PUD) Planned Unit Development

(B-1) Local Business District

(B-2) Community Business District

(B-3) General Business District

(R-C) Research Center District

(C-F) Community Facilities District

(C-J) Consent Judgment

(E-P) Environmental Protection District

(R-EC) Residential Elder Care

(P-1) Vehicular Parking District

(H-S) Highway Service District

(M-1) Light Industrial District

(O-1) Office Building District

(O-M) Office Mid-Rise District

(OSC) Office Service Commercial District

(CR-1) One Family Residential Cluster District

(R-1A) One Family Residential District

(R-1B) One Family Residential District

(R-1C) One Family Residential District

(R-1D) One Family Residential District

(R-1E) One Family Residential District

(R-1T) One Family Attached Residential District

(R-2) Two Family Residential District

(R-M) Multiple Family Residential Medium Density

(RM-1) Multiple Family Residential District (Low Rise)

(RM-2) Multiple Family Residential District (Mid Rise)

(RM-3) Multiple Family Residential District (High Rise)

Hydrography Poly

Hydrography Arc

Parcels

Aerial Photos - 2008

Red:    Band_1

Green: Band_2

Blue:   Band_3



 
 
 

 Date:  August 5, 2010 
 
 

Special Use Review 
For 

City of Troy, Michigan 
 
 
 
 
Applicant: Victor Saroki, FAIA, on behalf of the Barkshire 
 
Project Name: The Barkshire 
 
Plan Date: July 12, 2010 
 
Location: 1501 Temple City Drive 
 
Zoning: M-1, Light Industrial  
 
Action Requested: Preliminary Site Plan Approval, Special Use Approval 
 
Required Information: Deficiencies noted 
 
 
PROJECT AND SITE DESCRIPTION 
 
We are in receipt of a preliminary site plan and special use submittal for the reuse of an existing 
industrial building for a pet day care facility/commercial kennel.  The project proposes a series of 
major improvements including a new parking lot, new building interior and exterior renovations, 
new landscaping, and a new outdoor dog play area.   
 
Location of Subject Property: 
The property is located on the south side of Temple City Drive, west of Crooks Road. 
 
Size of Subject Property: 
The parcel is 0.88 acres in size. 
 



The Barkshire 8-5-2010 

2 

Proposed Uses of Subject Parcel: 
The applicant proposes to use the existing building for a dog and cat day care facility. 
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
The subject property is currently a vacant former industrial building.   
 
Current Zoning: 
The property is currently zoned M-1, Light Industrial District.  
 
Zoning Classification of Adjacent Parcels 
North: M-1, Light Industrial District 
West: M-1, Light Industrial District 
South: M-1, Light Industrial District 
East: M-1, Light Industrial District 
 

BUILDING LOCATION AND SITE ARRANGEMENT 
 

The existing building is well positioned on this smaller site, with an area along the west side of 
the building available for a new parking area and the new proposed outdoor play area.  The 
applicant intends to remove and replace the existing parking lot with a revised layout.  The site is 
accessed from the north boundary along Temple City Drive.  The applicant intends to maintain 
the same access.   
 
Items to be Addressed: None.   
 

AREA, WIDTH, HEIGHT, SETBACKS 
 
The site is home to an existing building.  Required and existing setbacks, which are not being 
altered by the project, are as follows: 
 

 

 Required Provided 

Setbacks   

Front 50 feet 49.92 feet 

Side East 10 feet 9.81 feet 

Side West 10 feet 79.7 feet 

Rear 20 feet 25.81 feet 

Building Height 40 Feet, 3 stories 22 feet, 4 inches 

Lot Coverage 40 percent 29.5 percent 



The Barkshire 8-5-2010 

3 

There are two previously existing legal nonconformities on this site.  Both the east side yard 
setback and the front yard setback are slightly deficient.  However, the applicant is not proposing 
the increase the level of nonconformity and they are permitted to remain. 
 
A note in the upper left corner of Sheets P-1.0, P-2.0, P-3.0, and P-4.0 incorrectly lists the 
required setbacks as 20 feet for each side yard and 40 feet total.  Sheet P-2.0, in the Site Data 
Table in the lower right, correctly lists the actual required setbacks, 10 feet on either side with 20 
feet in total.  Correct site data should be shown on all sheets. 
 
Items to be Addressed: Correct site data on all sheets. 
 
SITE ACCESS AND CIRCULATION 
 
Proposed Circulation: 
The site is accessed from the north boundary along Temple City Drive.  The applicant intends to 
maintain the same access point, but redesign and rebuild the approach itself.  The City Traffic 
Engineer is concerned that the reconfiguration of the drive may impact access to the adjacent site 
to the west.  The applicant should demonstrate that the proposed driveway reconfiguration will 
not negatively impact the site to the west. 
 
The site plan includes a row of new spaces along the east façade of the building, on the subject 
site, but accessed via the adjacent property.  The site plan includes a statement that they will 
obtain a cross access easement prior to construction.  This is not acceptable for several reasons.   
 
First, we do not support this location for these parking spaces, as they are not convenient to the 
building and will require users to walk with their dogs through the access drive of an industrial 
property.  Second, the maneuvering lane width is insufficient to service the spaces, as it would 
not allow two-way traffic.  If the adjacent parcel is functioning, and the property is being used, 
this could create many conflicts with the vehicles on the adjacent property.  In fact, vehicles 
using the proposed spaces would likely have to proceed south through a long alley and exit the 
site there, at the adjacent industrial property’s south frontage.  This is inconvenient, and could 
create unsafe conflicts.  Third, if the location were acceptable, the cross access easement must be 
in place prior to final site plan approval, not prior simply to construction. 
 
We do not support the use of the proposed area along the east façade for parking.  These spaces 
should be removed and the proposed parking area on the west side of the building should be 
modified to accommodate additional spaces.   
 
Sidewalks:  
The site provides a walkway from the proposed parking lot to the front door of the building.  The 
five proposed spaces on the east boundary, accessible only from the property to the east, are not 
connected to the front door by sidewalks.  We do not support the location of these spaces 
generally, but if they were to remain, a sidewalk must be installed from the main entrance to the 
spaces to allow for adequate, safe, ingress and egress.  However, we do not support the 
installation of these spaces. This neighborhood has no frontage sidewalks. 



The Barkshire 8-5-2010 

4 

 
Items to be Addressed: 1.) Demonstrate that the proposed driveway will not negatively impact 
the site to the west. 2.) Remove the proposed parking spaces along the east facade.    
,  

PARKING 
 
Proposed Parking: 
The site plan indicates a total of 15 parking spaces which includes 1 barrier free parking space.  
   
Parking Calculations: 
The parking calculations provided by the applicant are as follows. 
 

Required Provided 
One (1) for each employee in the largest 

working shift, plus one (1) for each fifteen 
(15) animals within the board capacity of 

the building; or one (1) for each four 
hundred fifty (450) square feet of gross 
floor area, whichever is greater.  The 

applicant has used the following: One (1) 
space per 450 square feet of gross floor 
area = 11,382/450 = 25.29 (25 spaces) 

 

15 spaces.  The applicant has also 
had a parking study completed and 
is requesting a parking modification 

 
The applicant has provided 15 spaces parking spaces, 10 less than that required by Ordinance.  
However, we do not support the proposed location of five of the spaces, accessible only from the 
east property.  With these spaces removed, the site plan would be deficient by 15 spaces, 
providing only 10 when 25 are required. 
 
The applicant has provided a parking study.  The study states that 15 spaces should be required 
based on other facilities in the area and their existing parking space counts compared with their 
number of kennels and square footage.  We believe the study is sound and provides good 
guidance on parking demand.  Consequently, we support the applicant receiving a parking 
modification to permit a reduced number of spaces.  However, we believe the applicant should 
remove the five proposed spaces along the east façade and replace them with additional spaces in 
the proposed main parking lot.  These five spaces would be ineffectual and would not safely or 
efficiently serve the property.  We would support a parking modification of 11 spaces if the 
applicant were to add four additional spaces to the main lot, consolidating the proposed parking 
and very nearly matching the average number of spaces provided by other commercial kennels in 
the area. 
 
Items to be Addressed: Remove the five parallel parking spaces to the east and expand the main 
parking area to 14 spaces, obtaining a modification of 11 spaces from the Planning Commission.   
 
 
 



The Barkshire 8-5-2010 

5 

NATURAL RESOURCES 
 
The site is previously developed and contains no natural features.  The proposed plan would not 
impact any protected natural features, and will actually improve the natural condition of the site 
by adding a refreshed landscaped area. 
 
Items to be Addressed: None. 
 
LANDSCAPING 
 
A landscape plan has been submitted as part of this application.  The plan includes 6 new trees to 
satisfy the frontage tree requirement (1 tree for every 30 linear feet of frontage = 160 feet/30 = 
5.3 = 6 trees).   The site plan also provides adequate greenbelt along Temple City Drive.  The site 
plan includes 12.6 percent landscaped area in the front and side yards, not including the 
greenbelt, exceeding the minimum 10 percent requirement. 
 
The applicant has stated that the dog play area of the site will be screened with opaque fencing, 
although no details are provided to ensure the screening selected will meet this requirement.  A 
detail of proposed fencing must be provided given the importance of screening for this use. 
 
Items to be Addressed: Provide fencing details.  
 
LIGHTING 
 
The applicant has not provided a photometric plan or any lighting details for this project.  Full 
lighting details will be provided for final site plan approval.   
 
Items to be Addressed: None. 
 
SPECIAL USE REVIEW 
 
For any special use, according to Section 03.31.04, the Planning Commission shall review the 
request, supplementary materials either in support or opposition thereto, as well as the Planning 
Department’s report, at a Public Hearing established for that purpose, and shall either grant or 
deny the request, table action on the request, or grant the request subject to specific conditions. 
 
Required Information 
In the M-1 District, commercial kennels are permitted by Section 28.30.07 as a special use. As 
such, a special use permit must be issued to allow the project to move forward, in accordance 
with Section 03.31.00. Section 03.33.00 establishes the information required for a special use 
application. All required information has been provided. 
 
Use Standards 
Section 28.30.07 lists two conditions for kennels within the M-1 District. They are as follows: 
 



The Barkshire 8-5-2010 

6 

A. The site shall be no closer than three hundred (300) feet from any residentially zoned or used 
property. This distance provision shall not apply to residentially zoned land which is developed 
or committed for uses other than the construction of residential dwellings.  
 
B. A Commercial Kennel establishment may include ancillary uses such as pet grooming and pet 
obedience training. 
 
The proposed facility is not within 300 feet of residential property and may include ancillary 
uses.  The use-specific standards of special use approval for a commercial kennel have been met.  
 
Standards of Approval 
Section 03.31.05 states that before approving any requests for Special Use Approval, the 
Planning Commission, or the City Council, where indicated, shall find that: 
 

1. The land use or activity being proposed shall be of such location, size and character as to 
be compatible with the orderly development or use of adjacent land and/or Districts. 

2. The land use or activity under consideration is within the capacity limitations of the 
existing or proposed public services and facilities which serve its location.  

 
We believe the land use as proposed by the site plan is of such location and character as to be 
compatible with the orderly development or use of adjacent land and/or Districts. The only 
outstanding concern that we believe merits consideration is the possibility of noise from barking 
dogs.  Given that the adjacent properties are all zoned M-1 District and are used for non-
residential purposes, and that the applicant has taken measures to screen the property, we do not 
believe that dog noise will create a significant disturbance.  The Planning Commission, however, 
should discuss this possibility with the applicant.  The majority of the time the dogs spend at the 
kennel will be spent indoors, where barking will not be audible from adjacent sites. 
 
The City Engineer had no comment with regard to public services and facilities. 
 
Items to be addressed: Discuss noise concerns with the Planning Commission. 
 
SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
Section 3.43.01 establishes the requirements for preliminary site plan approval.  The minimum 
standards necessary for review have been met. 

 
Items to be Addressed: None. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
This project cannot move forward as designed without several revisions to the proposed parking 
arrangement.  Therefore, we recommend that the Planning Commission postpone action on the 
applicant’s request until such time as they can address the items noted herein.  Should the 
applicant provide a solution acceptable to the Planning Commission, we do not object to 



The Barkshire 8-5-2010 

7 

Planning Commission approval of the request, conditioned on the applicant submitting a revised 
set of plans reflecting the proposed parking solution. 
 

 
 
 







From: Francis Engelhardt
To: Planning
Cc: Francis Engelhardt
Subject: Reference Public Hearing Planning File # SU-382 The Barkshire
Date: Saturday, July 31, 2010 3:39:56 PM

This is in reference to a application for a Special Use file # SU-382 at 1501 Temple City Drive.

I am the owner of a 6-unit multi-tenant building at 1490 Premier Road 88-20-29-476-018, which is
located to the south of the subject property.

Since there are five tenants that utilize my building, I am concerned about the noise that a dog kennel
will produce  at 1501 Temple City Drive directly to the north of my property.  I have tenants who have
expressed their concern also to me and I do not want a special use which produces objectionable noise
to cause my tenants to vacate their suites.

Since I am unable to attend the August 10 hearing, please register my objection to this "Special Use"
request to the Planning Commission.

Sincerely,

Francis A. Engelhardt, member
Engelwood Resources L.L.C.
P. O. Box 412
Birmingham, Michigan

mailto:Engelwood@MMCA.com
mailto:planning@troymi.gov
mailto:Engelwood@MMCA.com


From: Joe Del
To: Planning
Cc: Dhawal Zatakia
Subject: SU-382 THE BARKSIRE
Date: Tuesday, July 27, 2010 1:07:18 PM

Relative to Parcel No. 88-20-29-476-002
1501 Temple City Drive

Pls accept the following comments relative to the above:
I have experienced the noise level barking dogs in close proximity of kennel
This continuous barking is noise pollution to neighboring businesses and
is disruptive in the daily work process.
In one case I know is a business in the Rochester Area that had to move
because a kennel moved in next door...common wall......strip
mall....barking noise levels where distracting....
It is the continuously barking that creates the problem...pollution

I have nothing against anyone running a business, but this kind of a
business should be noise isolated from the businesses nearby
Thank You
Joe Del
for
AMERICAN HYDROSTATICS
1750 BLANEY RD
TROY
48084

mailto:joedel@americanhydrostatics.com
mailto:planning@troymi.gov
mailto:dz@americanhydrostatics.com


From: Jarvis Williams
To: Planning
Subject: file SU-382 THE BARKSHIRE
Date: Friday, July 23, 2010 5:19:52 PM

AS  OWNER OF THE PROPERTY @1450 TEMPLE CITY DR, WE ARE DEAD SET
AGAINST HAVING SUCH A BUSINESS ON OUR STREET.
THIS WILL CREATE A CONSTANT NOISE AND BE INCONSISTENT WITH OUR
INDUSTRIAL ZONING.
SUCH A BUSINESS MUST BE LOCATED OUTSIDE OF MAJOR POPULATION AREAS.
SHOULD YOU HAVE ADDED CONCERN PLEASE ADVISE.
RESPECTFULLY
JARVIS WILLIAMS MGR
TEMPLE CITY INV LLC

mailto:jarviswilliams@gmail.com
mailto:planning@troymi.gov


From: Jerry Williams
To: Planning
Subject: Planning File # SU-382 The Barkshire : Parcel # 88-20-29-476-002
Date: Friday, July 23, 2010 4:45:12 PM

Re: Planning File # SU-382  The Barkshire :  Parcel #  88-20-29-476-002

Dear Planning Department,

I am the tenant/owner of 1450 Temple City Drive and am across the street and 2 
buildings down from the proposed parcel zone change.

I am strongly opposed to this zoning request change.  I can appreciate the desire of 
the individual to start or move a business, however I feel this would further reduce 
the value of our property and deter further investment or expansion by other's on 
the street.

Please do not allow this zoning change request.

Respectfully,

Jerry Williams

Vice President

Detection Systems & Engineering Co.

mailto:jerry@dseco.com
mailto:planning@troymi.gov





















	MEETING AGENDA - August 10, 2010
	1. ROLL CALL
	2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	Regular Meeting - July 13, 2010

	4. PUBLIC COMMENTS
	5. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 862 A) – Weston Downs
	Planning Department Memorandum
	Maps
	Planning Consultant Memorandum
	Site Plan Application

	6. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 068 A) – Bethany Villa Community Building
	Planning Department Memorandum
	Proposed Resolution
	Maps
	Planning Consultant Memorandum
	Site Plan Application

	7. SPECIAL USE APPROVAL AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW(File Number SU 382) – The Barkshire
	Planning Department Memorandum
	Proposed Resolution
	Maps
	Planning Consultant Memorandum
	Parking Analysis
	Public Comment (4)
	Site Plan Application

	8. PUBLIC COMMENTS
	9. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS

